
 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to request this 
service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 

 
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Beloit City Plan Commission 
Wednesday, May 9, 2018 at 7:00 PM 

The Forum 
Beloit City Hall 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the April 18, 2018 Meeting 
 

3. Sign Ordinance Exception – Truk’t – 443 E Grand Avenue  
Public hearing, review and consideration of an exception to Sections 30.37(2)(c) and (g) of 
the Outdoor Sign Regulations to allow a projecting sign greater than 20 square feet in area 
and further than four feet from the building wall in the Central Business District, for the 
property located at 443 East Grand Avenue  

4. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
 

5. Adjournment 
 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Frank Fuerte in the Community 
Development Department at 364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

 
Notice Posted:  May 4, 2018 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director 
 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Meeting Minutes 

Beloit City Plan Commission 
Wednesday, April 18, 2018 at 7:00 PM 

The Forum 
Beloit City Hall 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
The meeting was called to order at 7:02pm. Commissioners Haynes, Weeden, Johnson, Ruster, 
Finnegan, and Councilor Leavy were present. Commissioners Faragher and Tinder were absent.  

 
2. Approval of the Minutes of the April 4, 2018 Meeting 

Commissioner Finnegan moved to approve the minutes. Commissioner Ruster seconded the 
motion. The motion passed, voice vote. 
 

3. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – 6219 & 6443 S US Highway 51 – Town of Rock 
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey for the property located at 6219 & 
6443 S US Highway 51 in the Town of Rock 
 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Haynes move to approve the Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map. 
Commissioner Johnson seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote. 
  

4. Site Plan Approval – 701 White Avenue – Fairbanks Morse Painting Building 
Review and consideration of a Site Plan for an Additional Accessory Building on the 
property located at 701 White Avenue 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Weeden asked why we are requiring an architectural review if the building is 
not visible from the street. Ms. Christensen states that the ordinance requires it. 
 
Commissioner Haynes moved to approve the Site Plan. Commissioner Johnson seconded 
the motion. The motion passed, voice vote. 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
The Conditional Use Permit for 555 Lawton Avenue was approved and the site plan will be 
brought to Plan Commission for approval once it is submitted. 
 

6. Adjournment 
Commissioner Johnson moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Ruster seconded the 
motion. 
  
Meeting adjourned at 7:15pm.  

 
Minutes respectfully submitted by Amber DesRoberts. 
 



May 9 Staff Report, SOE-2018-01, 443 E. Grand Ave

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: May 9, 2018 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: SOE-2018-01

Applicant: Kevin Cook, JNB Signs,
Inc.

Owner: Hendricks Commercial
Properties

Location: 443 E. Grand Avenue

Existing Zoning: CBD-1, Central
Business District - Core

Existing Land Use: Commercial Parcel Size: 0.1 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
Kevin Cook of JNB Signs, on behalf of Hendricks Commercial Properties, has filed an application for an exception to
Sections 30.37(2)(c) & (g) of the Outdoor Sign Regulations (the “Sign Ordinance”) to allow a projecting sign greater than
20 square feet in area and further than four (4) feet from the building wall in the Central Business District, for the property
located at 443 E. Grand Avenue.

Key Issues:
 The owner has proposed the renovation of the existing commercial building on the subject property into a new

restaurant to be named Truk’t. As shown on the attachments, the proposed projecting sign will advertise “Truk’t
Street Tacos, Tequila, & Whiskey” and will consist of an internally illuminated aluminum sign face mounted on
steel beams attached to the building corner. The subject property is located at the NW corner of E. Grand Avenue
and Pleasant Street/U.S. Highway 51. A second proposed business, Blue Collar Coffee, is not subject to this
request.

 The proposed sign face will be red in color with routed lettering, and will be surrounded by Edison light bulbs.
 Section 30.37 of the Sign Ordinance outlines the regulations for projecting signs, which are only allowed in the

Central Business District and are intended to be pedestrian-oriented. The Ordinance states that projecting signs
may not exceed 20 square feet in area and may not project more than four (4) feet from the building wall.

 The proposed sign is 43 square feet in area and projects ten (10) feet from the building wall. The sidewalk is
approximately ten (10) feet wide at this location, measured from the building façade to the bottom of the ramp.

 The City Engineer has expressed opposition to this request, based upon concerns about the sign interfering with
visibility of the traffic signals and the significant encroachment into the right-of-way in width and size.

 According to the Downtown Beloit Design Guidelines (2016), projecting signs should not project more than four
(4) feet from the building wall and should not obscure the signage of other businesses. In addition, the guidelines
warn against “overly sized signs, out-of-scale signs, and signs that block architectural detail.”

 According to the Sign Ordinance, the Plan Commission may grant an exception if it determines that compliance
will create an economic hardship, the hardship is not self-created, and the exception will not undermine the
purpose of the Sign Ordinance or the public interest.

 The application, which is attached to this report, includes a brief statement relating to hardship. According to the
applicant, the proposed sign has been designed to be visible from all four directions at the intersection.

 Findings of Fact: Section 30.48(2) of the Sign Ordinance outlines standards for granting an exception. The
Ordinance states that the Plan Commission may grant an exception if it determines that:

a. Compliance with the strict letter of the Sign Ordinance would create an economic hardship by either
unreasonably restricting an on-premises sign owner from advertising a business or rendering
conformity with such regulations unnecessarily burdensome upon an owner of an on-premises sign.

• The building owner’s proposed renovation of this vacant commercial building into a restaurant
and coffee shop is an exciting prospect that will bring additional business activity and vitality
to downtown Beloit. However, the application does not include a persuasive argument for
hardship, and the Sign Ordinance’s allowance of a 20 square-foot sign no more than four feet
from the building provides ample opportunity for advertisement.

b. The hardship is not self-created.
• The subject property is allowed to have a projecting sign that complies with the Sign

Ordinance and Downtown Design Guidelines. There are no unusual attributes of the subject
property that make it less visible than other downtown properties, so any claimed hardship is
self-created.

c. The exception will not undermine the purpose of the Sign Ordinance or the public interest.
 The proposed sign is unusually large and wide, and conflicts with the intent of allowing

projecting signs. Projecting signs are intended to be pedestrian-scaled and compatible with
nearby signage, as detailed in the Downtown Beloit Design Guidelines.



May 9 Staff Report, SOE-2018-01, 443 E. Grand Ave

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan:
The subject property’s underlying zoning district classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature - N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends denial of an exception to Sections 30.37(2)(c) & (g) of the Sign
Ordinance to allow a projecting sign greater than 20 square feet in area and further than four (4) feet from the building wall
in the Central Business District, for the property located at 443 E. Grand Avenue, based on the above Findings of Fact.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Sign Specs, Building Renderings, Application, Public Notice, and Resolution.



May 9 Staff Report, SOE-2018-01, 443 E. Grand Ave



May 9 Staff Report, SOE-2018-01, 443 E. Grand Ave



May 9 Staff Report, SOE-2018-01, 443 E. Grand Ave



May 9 Staff Report, SOE-2018-01, 443 E. Grand Ave



May 9 Staff Report, SOE-2018-01, 443 E. Grand Ave



May 9 Staff Report, SOE-2018-01, 443 E. Grand Ave



May 9 Staff Report, SOE-2018-01, 443 E. Grand Ave



May 9 Staff Report, SOE-2018-01, 443 E. Grand Ave

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN EXCEPTION TO
THE SIGN ORDINANCE FOR THE PROPERTY

LOCATED AT 443 E. GRAND AVENUE

WHEREAS, the application of Kevin Cook of JNB Signs, on behalf of Hendricks
Commercial Properties, for an exception to Sections 30.37(2)(c) & (g) of the Outdoor Sign
Regulations (the “Sign Ordinance”) to allow a projecting sign greater than 20 square feet in area
and further than four (4) feet from the building wall in the Central Business District, for the
property located at 443 E. Grand Avenue, having been considered by the Plan Commission of
the City of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Plan Commission of the
City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin does hereby grant an exception to Sections 30.37(2)(c)
& (g) of the Sign Ordinance to allow a projecting sign up to 43 square feet in area and up to ten
(10) feet from the building wall in the Central Business District, for the property located at 443
E. Grand Avenue in the City of Beloit, for the following described premises:

PART OF LOT 6, BLOCK 47 OF THE ORIGINAL PLAT. COM SE COR L 6,
TH NLY 102.57 FT, TH WLY 25.7 FT, TH SLY 2.65 FT, THE WLY 16.3 FT, TH
SLY 99.92 FT, TH ELY 42 FT TO POB. ALL SITUATED IN THE CITY OF
BELOIT, COUNTY OF ROCK, STATE OF WISCONSIN. SAID PARCEL
CONTAINS 0.0906 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. (A/K/A 443 E. GRAND
AVENUE).

Adopted this 9th day of May, 2018.

PLAN COMMISSION

James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Julie Christensen, Community Development Director


